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2022
99,593,296 94.50
2,402,696 2.28
3,399,303 3.23
105,395,295
9,696 100.00
2022

Signum homentum Ltd 0 | 202379729 | 103,120,000 | 79,825,192 | 99,593,296 | 94.50

09/29/2023

Quartix Financial

Products 11 Ltd 2023/9/29 | 103,120,000 | 22,366,728 2,402,696 2.28
09/29/2023

0.895
0.30
0.10
2022

2022
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2022

2016 11 288,129,719 26,508 0.9480 87
2017 11 227,064,188 20,890 0.9827 90
2018 11 185,783,099 17,092 0.9739 90
2019 11 175,170,936 16,116 1.0254 94
2020 11 156,984,941 14,443 1.0248 94
2021 11 112,960,516 10,392 1.0032 92
2021 136,658,814 12,573 1.0211 94
133,795,584 12,309 1.0214 94

128,954,115 11,864 1.0180 94

125,968,467 11,589 1.0201 94

122,552,129 11,275 1.0182 94

119,909,334 11,032 1.0166 94

10 116,513,772 10,719 0.9982 92

11 112,960,516 10,392 1.0032 92

12 110,959,594 10,208 1.0037 92

2022 108,513,536 9,983 0.9988 92
107,319,091 9,873 0.9972 92

105,395,295 9,696 0.9894 91
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©) (72,870,000) (231,060,000)
0 40,310,000 190,750,000
©) (40,310,000) (190, 750,000)
0 19,930,000 170,820,000
©) (19,930,000) (170,820,000)
0 17,640,000 153,180,000
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15 10
2021 11 30
2021 11 30 2020 11 30
,16 112,173,208 10,319,935 154,643,424 14,227,195
55,016 5,061
742,072 68,271 2,089,776 192,259
4,014,042 369,292 7,481,576 688,305
116,984,338 10,762,559 164,214,776 15,107,759
1,973,743 181,584 5,025,930 462,386
204,343 18,800 203,601 18,731
2,178,086 200,384 5,229,531 481,117
10 112,600,000 10,359,200 153,180,000 14,092,560
2,206,252 202,975 5,805,245 534,083
12 114,806,252 10,562,175 158,985,245 14,626,643
116,984,338 10,762,559 164,214,776 15,107,759
10 112,600,000 153,180,000
12 1.0195 94 1.0378 95
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15 10
2021 11 30
2021 2020
1,504,295 138,395 1,815,686 167,043
127,400 11,721
4 0 527 48
1,504,299 138,396 1,943,613 178,812
47,225 4,345 58,724 5,403
131,037 12,055 162,902 14,987
524,149 48,222 651,608 59,948
327,593 30,139 407,255 37,467
331,037 30,455 363,449 33,437
125,800 11,574
157,245 14,467 195,483 17,984
51,164 4,707 8,750 805
94,885 8,729 42,204 3,883
1,664,335 153,119 2,016,175 185,488
(160,036) (14,723) (72,562) (6,676)
1,048,597 96,471 598,575 55,069
(3,722,116) (342,435) (752,208) (69,203)
(289) @n (74,735) (6,876)
(2.,673,808) (245,990) (228,368) (21,010)
(2.833,844) (260,714) (300,930) (27,686)
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15 10
2021 11 30
10 10

170,820,000 170,820,000 15,715,440 6,504,180 598,385 177,324,180 16,313,825
(17,640,000) (17,640,000) (1,622,880) (398,005) (36,616) (18,038,005) (1,659,496)
(300,930) (27,686) (300,930) (27,686)

153,180,000 153,180,000 14,092,560 5,805,245 534,083 158,985,245 14,626,643
(40,580,000) (40,580,000) (3,733,360) (765,149) (70,394) (41,345,149) (3,803,754)
(2.,833,844) (260,714) (2,833,844) (260,714)

112,600,000 112,600,000 10,359,200 2,206,252 202,975 114,806,252 10,562,175
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15 10
2021 11 30
2021 2020
(2,833,844) (260,714) (300,930) (27,686)
(1,504,299) (138,396) (1,816,213) (167,092)
(127,400) (11,721)
125,800 11,574
742 68 (33,466) (3,079)
(4,337,401) (399,041) (2,152,209) (198,003)
1,449,283 133,334 1,816,213 167,092
(1,048,597) (96,471) (598,575) (55,069)
3,722,116 342,435 752,208 69,203
41,144,401 3,785,285 18,085,949 1,663,907
40,929,802 3,765,542 17,903,586 1,647,130
(44,397,336) (4,084,555)  (15,383,574) (1,415,289)
(44,397,336) (4,084,555)  (15,383,574) (1,415,289)
(3,467,534) (319,013) 2,520,012 231,841
7,481,576 688,305 4,961,564 456,464
4,014,042 369,292 7,481,576 688,305
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2023 29 100
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111,860,000 109,399,080 95.29
111,860,000 2,774,128 2.43
112,173,208 97.72
2020 11 30
150,960,000 149,299,440 93.91
150,960,000 5,343,984 3.36
154,643,424 97.27
2021 11 30 4,014,042 2020 7,481,576 3,103,599
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- - - 55,016 55,016

- - - 742,072 742,072
502,035 371,415 92,009 3,048,583 4,014,042
502,035 371,415 92,009 116,018,879 116,984,338
- - - 1,973,743 1,973,743
18,500 59,048 12,500 114,295 204,343
18,500 59,048 12,500 2,088,038 2,178,086
483,535 312,367 79,509 113,930,841 114,806,252

2020 11 30

- - - 154,643,424 154,643,424
- - - 2,089,776 2,089,776
582,402 407,205 88,595 6,403,374 7,481,576
582,402 407,205 88,505 163,136,574 164,214,776
- - - 5,025,930 5,025,930
- 58,724 - 144,877 203,601

- 58,724 - 5,170,807 5,229,531

582,402 348,481 88,595 157,965,767 158,985,245

2021 2020 11 30 10
2021 2020

48,354 58,240
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2021 11 30
112,173,208 - - - 112,173,208
- 55,016 - - 55,016
742,072 - - - 742,072
4,014,042 - - - 4,014,042
116,929,322 55,016 - - 116,984,338
1,973,743 - - - 1,973,743
204,343 - - - 204,343
2,178,086 - - - 2,178,086

2020 11 30
154,643,424 - - - 154,643,424
2,089,776 - - - 2,089,776
7,481,576 - - - 7,481,576
164,214,776 - - - 164,214,776
5,025,930 - - - 5,025,930
203,601 - - - 203,601
5,229,531 - - - 5,229,531
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2021 11 30
2020 12 154,643,424
(39,796,697)
1,048,597
(3,722,116)
2021 11 30 112,173,208
(2,673,519)
2020 11 30
2019 12 174,184,992
(19,387,935)
598,575
(752,208)
2020 11 30 154,643,424
(153,633)
17
2021 11 30 9,470,339 9,480,000

2022 19 2022 5,080,000 1,960,000
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PHILOSOPHIC 2 INVESTMENT TRUST - BOND PLUS FUND LINKED TO THE PERFORMANCE OF

WINTON 15-10 (AL

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

Asat 30 November 2021

ASSETS

Financial assels al fair value through profit or loss

Inieresi receivahle
Amount due from broker
Cash and cash equivalents

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES

Redemption payable

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
TOTAL LIABILITIES

EQUITY

Unitholders® capital

Sumplus

TOTAL EQUITY

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

NUMBER OF UNITS IN ISSUE

NET ASSET VALUE PER UNIT

Modtes 30 November 30 Movember
2021 2020

AUD AUD

816 112,173,208 154 643,424
55,016 -

T42072 2,089,776

4 4,014 042 7481.574
116,954,338 164,214,776
1,973,743 5,025,930

204,343 203,601

2.178.086 5,229,531

10 112,600,000 153,180,000
2,206,252 5,805,245

12 114,806,252 158,085,245
116,984,338 164,214,776

10 112.600,000 153, 180,000
12 AUDLO195 AL 0378

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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PHILOSOPHIC 2 INVESTMENT TRUST - BOND PLUS FUND LINKED TO THE PERFORMANCE OF

WINTON 15-10 (AUD)
STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

For the year ended 30 November 2021

Moles

INCOME

Interest income from performance hnked notes
Redemption fee income

Interest income from bank deposits

Total investment incoms

EXPENSES

Auddit fee

Agent company's fee
Distributor's fee
Investment advisor fees
Management fee
Redemption fee expense
Trustee and trustee’s delegate fees
Legal fees

Other operaling expenses
Total operating expenses

NET LOSS5 BEFORE INVESTMENT AND
EXCHANGE DIFFERENCES

INVESTMENT AND EXCHANGE DIFFERENCES

Met realised gain on financial assets af fair valoe through
profit or loss

Met change in wunrealised loss on financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss

Met foreign exchange loss

NET COMPREHENSIVE LOSS FOR THE YEAR

S O S Oy

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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2021 2020

AUD AUD
1,504,295 1.815,686

- 127,400

4 527
1,504,299 1,543,613
47,225 58,724
131.037 162,902
524,149 651,608
327,593 407,255
331,037 363,449

- 125,800

157,245 195,483
51,164 8,750
94,885 42,204
1,664,335 2,016,175
{160.036) (72.562)
1,048,597 598.575
(3.722,116) (752,208)
(289) (74.735)
{2.673.808) {228.368)
(2.833,814) (300,930}
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PHILOSOPHIC 2 INVESTMENT TRUST - BOND PLUS FUND LINKED TO THE PERFORMANCE OF
WINTON 15-10 (AUD)

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the year ended 30 November 2021

Mumber of Unitholders' Surplus/
units utstanding capital {Delicit) Total equity
ALD ALD ALD
{Mote 1400 (Mote 1)

Balance at | December 2019 170,820,000 170,820,000 6, 50u, 1 80 177,324,180

Redemption of units (17,640,040 (17,640,000) (358, 005) (18,038, (:05)

Nel comprehmeive loss - - {300, 9300 (300,930
AL 30 Novemnber 2020 and 1

December 2020 153,180,000 133,180,000 5,305,245 158,985,245

Fedemption of units (40, SR0,000) (40,580,000 (765,149 (41,345,149

MNet comprehensive loss - - (2 833,8440) (2833 844)

AL 30 November 2021 1 12,6040, 006 112,600, 00 2,206,252 114,806,252

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
=
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PHILOSOPHIC 2 INVESTMENT TRUST - BOND PLUS FUND LINKED TO THE PERFORMANCE OF
WINTON 15-10 (AUD)

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

For the year ended 30 November 2021

Motes 2021 2020
AUD AUD
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net comprehensive loss for the year {2.833.544) (300,930)
Adjustments for:
Interest income (1,504,299 (1,816,213}
Redemption fee income 7 - {127,400}
Redemption fee expense 7 - 125,800
Increase/ decrease) in accounts payable and accmed liabilities T42 {33.466)
Cash used in operations (4.337.401) (2,152,209)
Interest received 1,449,283 1,816,213
Met realised gain on financial assets at fair value through profit or
lozs (1,048,597 (598,575)
MNet change in unrealised loss on financial asseis af fair value
through profit or loss 3722116 752,208
Proceeds from sale of financial assets at fair vahe through profit
or loss 41,144,401 18,085,549
et cash flows generated from opersting activilies 40,929,802 17,903,586
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Payments on redemption of units {44,397 334 {15,383 574}
Net cash flows nsed in financing activities {44,397 338 (15,383,574}
NET (DECREASEYINCREASE IN CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS (3467534 2,520,012
Cash and cash equivalens al beginning of the year TABL5T6 4.961.564
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF THE YEAR g 4,014,042 TA81.576

The sccompanying nobes are an integral pant of these financial statements.

8

85/183




EDINETOOOO
OOo00oDOoO0oDo0o0oo00boOo0doOO(ELsSo33)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

PHILOSOPHIC 2 INVESTMENT TRUST - BOND PLUS FUND LINKED TO THE PERFORMANCE OF
WINTON 15-10 (AUD)

MOTES TOFINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 30 November 2021

1. THE TRUST

Philogophic 2 Investment Trest (the “Trst” ) is an open-ended ambrella amt tmst constitted by a
master trust deed dated 20 March 2013 under the laws of the Cayman Islands, regnlated mutoal fiund
under the Cayman Islands Mutual Funds Act (2020 Revision) and registered with the Cayvman 1slands
Monetary Authority, entered into between 10} EQ Management Bermmeda Limited (the “Manager™) and
HSBC Trustee (Cayman) Limited (the *Trustee™), The Trust has been established as an umbrella unit
trust with the ability to create and establish separate portfolio or series trust to which assets and
liabilities attribulable to such series trust will be applied.

Bond Plus Fund Linked to the Performance of Winton 15-10 (AUD) (the *Senes Trust™) is a series
trust of the Trost constituted pursuant Lo the master trust deed and a supplemental trost deed dated 12
Angust 2015 made between the Trustee and the Manager, As at 30 November 2021, two (20200wo)
series trusts had been established.

The investment objective of the Series Trust is to pursne capital gain over the medium (o long tenm,
while aiming (o ensure a net asset value per wmt af the tme of the matunty date that is not less than
1002 of the Australian Dollar (* AUD" ) denominated offer price. The Manager aims to achieve such
investment objective by investing all of the proceeds from the issue of units in 8 vear Australian Dollar
denominated zero coupon notes (each a “Zero Coupon Note™) issued by Sigmom Momentiom Limited
{the “Zero Coupon Note [ssuer™) and 8 year Australian dollar denominated performance linked notes
{each a “Performance Linked Note") issued by Ouantix Fimancial Products 11 Limited {the
“Performance Linked MNote [ssuer”). The Zero Coupon Notes seek (o provide their holders with
profection of 100% of the Zero Coupen Notes” principal amount {in Australian Dollars) ifsuch holders
hold their Zero Coupon Notes until the note maturity date. The remaining net proceeds from the issue
of units, after investment in the Zero Coupon Notes and payment of certain expenses, will be invested
inthe Performance Linked Notes. Investment in the Performance Linked Notes will provide investors
with exposure to the performance of MA WCM FP Limited (the “Underlying Fund™).

The Seres Trust shall terminate on the eadier of 13 October 2023, or the occumrence of any of the
other lermination events et oul in mader trust deed,

2.1 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICY AND DISCLOSURES

Mew and amended gandards and interpretations issued and effective for the financial vear beginming
1 December 2020

There are no new standards and amendment s Lo existing standards that are effective for annial periods
beginning on 1 December 2020 that have a matenial effect onthe financial statements or after | January
2021 which, inthe opinion of the Boeard will cleady impact the Series Trost,

i e 1 i 10118 1 251 of vel effective applie
fior t]le ilnanﬁal Year hegummg 1 December 2:]2! :md |1|:Jt early adopted

There are no standards and mterpretations that are issued, but not vet effective, up to the date of
issuanece of the Series Trust's financial statements that would be expected to have a significant impact
on the Senes Trust.
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PHILOSOPHIC 2 INVESTMENT TRUST - BOND PLUS FUND LINKED TO THE PERFORMANCE OF
WINTON 15-10 (AUD)

NOTES TOFINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 30 November 2021

232 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

The amended standards that are issued, but not yet effective, up to the date of the Series Trust's
financial statements are disclosed below, except for those standards which, in the opinion of the Board,
will clearly not impact the Series Trost, The Series Trust intends to adopt these amended standards, 17
applicable, when they become effective.

Definition of Accounting Estimates - Amendments to [TAS &

In February 2021, the [ASE issued amendments to TAS 8, in which it introduces a definition of
“accounting estimates”. The amendments clarify the distinction between changes in accounting
estimates and changes in accounting policies and the correction of errors, Also, they clanfy how
entifies use measurement techniques and inputs to develop accounting estimates.

The amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginming on or after 1 Janary 2023 and
apply to changes in accounting policies and changes in accounting estimates that ocour on or after the
stant of that penod. Eadier application is permitted as long as this fact is disclosed,

The amendments are not expected to have a material impact on the Series Trust.

Disdosure of Accounting Polides - Amendments to IAS 1 and [FRS Practice Statement 2

In February 2021, the [ASE issued amendments to JAS | and IFRS Practice Statement 2 Making
Matenality Judgements, in which it provides guidance and examples (o help entities apply materiality
judgements to accounting policy disclesures. The amendments aim to help entities provide accounting
policy disclosures that are more useful by replacing the requirement for enfities (o disclose their
“gignificant” accounding policies with a requirement to disclose their “material™ accounting, policies
and adding guidance on how entities apply the concept of materiality in making decisions about
accounting policy disclosures.

The amendments to LAS 1 are applicable for annmal penods beginmng onor afler 1 January 2023 with
earlier application permitted. Since the amendments to the Practice Statement 2 provide mon-
mandatory guidance on the application of the definition of matenal to accounting policy information.
an effective date for these amendments 15 not necessary,

The Series Trest is currently assessing the impact of the amendments to determine the impact they
will have on the Series Trust’s accounting policy disclosures.

Amendments to LAS 1: Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current
In January 2020. the IASB issued amendments to paragraphs 69 to 76 of IAS | to specify the

requirements for classifying liabilities as cumrent or non-current. The amendments clarify:

What is meant by aright to defer settlement

That aright to defer must exist & the end of the reporting pernod

That classification is unaffected by the likelihood that an entity will exercise its deferral night
That anly if an embedded denvative in a convertible Rabality 15 wself an equaty mstmmment wonld
the terms of a liability not impact its classification

AT e

The amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after | January 2023 and
nmst be applied retrospectively. The Series Trust is currently assessing the impact the amendments
will have on current practice and whether exasing loan agreements may require renegoliation,

10
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PHILOSOPHIC 2 INVESTMENT TRUST - BOND PLUS FUND LINKED TO THE PERFORMANCE OF
WINTON 15-10 (AUD)

NOTES TOFINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 30 November 2021
3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS, ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS

The preparation of the Senes Trust's Anancial stalements requires management (o make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities
and the accompanying disclosures, Uncertainty abont these assumptions and estimates could result in
ocomes that could require a matenal adjustment Lo the carmving amount of the asset or Lability
affected in future periods.

Judgements
In the process of applying the Series Trust's accounting policies. management has made the following
judgements, which have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial
statements,

Foing camncern

The Series Trest's management has made an assessment of the Series Trug's ability to continmie as a
going concern and is satisfied that the Series Trust has the resources to conlimue in business for the
foreseeable future. Furthermore, management is not aware of any matenal uncertainties that may cast
significant doult upon the Series Trust's ability to continue as a going concern. Therefore, the
financial statements are prepared on the going concern basis.

Taxes

Unecenainties exist with respect to the interpretation of complex tax regulations and changes in tax
laws on forengn withholding tax. Given the wide range of mternational investment s, differences ansing
between the actual investment income and the assumptions made, or future changes to such
assumptions, could necessitate fubure adjustments fo tax expense already recorded, The Seres Trus
establishes provisions, based on reasonable estimafes, for possible consequences of audits by the tax
mnthorities of the respective countries in which it invests. The amounts of such provisions are based
on varions factors, such as expenence of previous tax aedits and diffenng interpretations of tax
regulations by the taxable entity and the responsible tax authority, Such differences of interpretation
may arise on a wide variety of issues depending on the conditions prevailing in the respective
investment’s domicile. As the Series Trust assesses the probability for litigation and subsequent cash
ot flow with respect Lo taxes as remote, no contingent Liability has been recogmised.

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

taternent of compli
The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with IFRSs as issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board (“TASBE™)., and imerpretations issued by Intemational Financial
Reponting, Interpretations Committee (*IFRIC™) of the IASE. The accounting policies adopted are
consistent with those of the previous financial year, other than as disclosed in Mote 2.

Rasis of i
The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss that have been measured at fair value. The financial statements are

presemted in AUD, which is also the Series Trust's functional cumrency, and all values are rounded 1o
the nearest AUD except where otherwise indicated.

11
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PHILOSOPHIC 2 INVESTMENT TRUST - BOND PLUS FUND LINKED TO THE PERFORMANCE OF
WINTON 15-10 (AUD)

MOTES TOFINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 30 November 2021

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Revenne is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow tothe Series Trust and
when the revenue can be measured reliably. Interest income is recognised on a time apportioned basis
taking into account the principal outstanding and the effective interest rate applicable,

Financial instrumenis

{1 Classification

In accordance with IFRS 9, the Series Trust classifies its financial assets and financial liabilities at
initial recognition into the categories of financial assets and financial liabilities discussed below.

Financial asvets
The Series Trust classifies its financial assets as subsequently measured at amonised cost or measured
al fair value through profit or loss (“FVPL™ ) on the basis of bath:

= The entity's business model for managing the financial assets
+  The comtractun] cash flow chamcteristics of the financial asset

Financial assets measwred af amontised cost

A et instrument is measured at amonised cost 1T is held within a business model whose objective
isto hold financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows and its contractual terms give rise
on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal
amount ontstanding. The Series Trost includes in this category are interest receivable, amount doe
from broker, cash and cash equivalents.

Financial assels measured ar FVPL
A financial asset 15 measured at FVPL1E

(a) Itz contractual termes do nol give rise to cash flows on specified dates that are solely payments of
principal and interest (" SPPI) on the pringipal amount outstanding: or

(b It 15 not held within a business model whose olgective 15 either to collect comractual cash flows,
or 1o both collect contractual cash flows and sell; or

(e} At initial recognition. it i irevocably designated as measnred at FVPL when doing so eliminates
or sigmficantly reduces a measurement or recogration inconsistency that would otherwise anse
from measunng assets or lalahties or recogmsng the gams and losses on them on different bases,

The Senes Trust includes in this category:

+  Debt instruments. These include investments that are held under a business model to manage them
om a fair value basis for investment income and far valee gains,

Financial Habilitles

Fimaneial liabilities measured af amortised cost

This category includes all financial liabilities, other than those measured at FVPL, The Series Trust
includes in this category are redemption payable, accounts payable and accrued liabilities.
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PHILOSOPHIC 2 INVESTMENT TRUST - BOND PLUS FUND LINKED TO THE PERFORMANCE OF
WINTON 15-10 (AUD)

MOTES TOFINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 30 November 2021

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments {continmed)

{7} Recognition

The Series Trust recogmises a fimancial asset or habiity when, and only when, it becomes a party 1o
the contractual provisions of the instrument . Purchases or sales of financial assets that require defivery
of assets within the time frame generally established by regulation or convention in the marketplace
{regular way trades) are recognised on the trade date, ie. the date that the Series Trust commits (o
purchase or sell the asset.

(75} Fnitial measurement
Financial assets at FVPL are initially recorded in the statement of financial position at fair value. All
transaction costs for such instruments are recognised directly in profit or loss.,

Financial assets (other than those classified as at FVPL) are measured irutially af their faur value plus
any directly attnbutable incremental costs of acquisition or issue,

(vl Suhsequent measure et

Adter initial measurement, the Series Trust measures financial instruments which are classified as at
FVPL at fair value. Subsequent changes in the fair value of those financial instruments are recorded
in “net gain or loss on financial assets at FYPL® in the statement of comprehensive income, Interest
and dividends eamed or pard on these instruments are recorded separately 1n imered revenue or
expense and dividend revenne or expense in the statement of comprehensive income.

Financial habihities, other than those classified as ot FVPL, are measured at amortised cost wsing the
effective interest method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are
derecosnised, as well as through the amortisation process,

The effective interest method is a method of caleulating the amortised cost of a financial asset or a
financial liability and of allocating the interest income or interest expense over the relevant period.
The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments of receipts
through the expected life of the financial instrument or, when appropriate, a shorter period, to the net
camying amount of the fimancial asset or financial liability, When calculating the effective interest
rate, the Senes Tmst estimates cash fows considering all contractual terms of the financial
instruments, but does not consider fiture credit losses. The calculation includes all fees paid or
received between parties to the contract that are an integral part of the effective interest rate
transaction costs and all other premiwms or discounts.
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PHILOSOPHIC 2 INVESTMENT TRUST - BOND PLUS FUND LINKED TO THE PERFORMANCE OF
WINTON 15-10 (AUD)

MOTES TOFINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 30 November 2021

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments {continmed)

(vl Derecognition

A financial asset (or, where apphicable a part of a financial asset or part of a growp of similar financial
assels) is derecognised where:

#  The righis to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or

*  The Series Trust has transfemed its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an
obligation to pay the received cash flows in full withowt material delay to a third party under a
“pass-through’” arangement; and

= Either (a) the Series Trust has transferred substantially all the nisks and rewards of the asset, or
ib) the Seres Trust has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of
the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Series Trust has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset o has entered into
a pass-{hrough arrangement, and has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewands of the asset nor transfermed conirel of the assel, the asset 15 recognmsed to the extent of the
Series Trust's continuing involvement in the assel. In that case, the Series Trust also recognises an
associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are measuwred on a basis that
reflects the nghts and obligations that the Senes Trost has retained,

The Series Trust derecognises a financial liability when the obligation under the liability is discharged.
cancelled or expined.

Fair value measnremeant

The Seres Trost measures financial instroments at fair value ot of each mepoding period,  Fair value
isthe price that would be received 1o sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the
presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

*  Inthe prncipal market for the asset or liability, or
*  Inthe absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible 1o the Series Trust.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants
would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market panicipants act in their economic
best inferest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial assel takes into account a market participant’s ability to

generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it 1o another
market participant that would use the asset in its ighest and best use.
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PHILOSOPHIC 2 INVESTMENT TRUST - BOND PLUS FUND LINKED TO THE PERFORMANCE OF
WINTON 15-10 (AUD)

MOTES TOFINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 30 November 2021

4, SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contimaed)

Fair value measurement (continued)

The fair value of financial instrument s is based on their quoted market prices on arecognised exchange
and valued at last traded price or sourced from a reputable broker or counterpany, inthe case of non-
exchange traded instruments, at the reporting date without any deduction for estumated future selling
coglE,

Forall other financial instroments nod traded in an active market, the fair value is determined by using
valuation techniques deemed to be appropriate in the circumstances. Valuation techniques include the
market approach (i.e. using recent arm’s length market transactions adjpsted as necessary and
reference to the cwrent market value of ancther nstrument that is substantially the same) and the
income approach {i.e., discounted cash flow analysis and option pricing models making as much use
of available and supportable market data as possible).

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are
categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that
is sigmificant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

= Lewvel 1 - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

+  Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is directly or indirectly observable

= Lewvel 3 - Valuation techmiques for which the lowest level inpuat that is significant to the fair value
measurément is unabservable

For assets and liablities that are recogrised in the financial statements on a recumng basis, the Senes
Trust determines whether transfers have ocoumrred between levels in the hierarcly by re-assessing
categorization (baged on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a
whole) at the end of each reporting period.

For financial assets al amortised cod, impaimment allowances are recogmsed under the general
appreach where expected credit losses are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures where there
has not been a sigrificant increase in credit sk since imitial recognition, the Senes Trst is required
to provide for credit losses that result from possible default events within the next 12 months. For
those credit exposures where there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, a loss allowance is required for credit losses expected over the remaining life of the
exposure irrespective of the timing of the defaulr,
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PHILOSOPHIC 2 INVESTMENT TRUST - BOND PLUS FUND LINKED TO THE PERFORMANCE OF
WINTON 15-10 (AUD)

MOTES TOFINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 30 November 2021

4, SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contimaed)

Foreign curmency transactions
The Seres Trust's functiional and presentation currency is the AUD, The functional curmency reflects
the currency in which the Series Trust primarily generates and expends cash from its activities.

Transactions during the pedod in cumencies other than the Pmctional currency are recorded @ the
rates of exchange prevailing 2 the date of the transaction. Monetary assets and ligbilities denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rate of exchange prevailing at the reporting period.
Realised and unrealised exchange gains or losses on foreign cumency transactions are charged or
credited as profit or loss in the gatement of comprehensive income as net foreign exchange gains or
losses.

Mon-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated
using the exchange rates as al the dates of the initial transaction. Non-monetary items measured at fair
value in a foreign curmency are translated nsing the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was
determined.

The rate of exchange in effect at 30 November 2021 was AUD1 = USDO. 7104 (2020: AUDI =
LS. 73907,

Related parties
A panty is considered to be related to the Senes Trust ift

{a) the party is a person of a close member of that person’s family and that person
{i)  has control or joint control over the Series Trust;
(i) has significant influence over the Series Trust; or,
{iii) is a member of the key management persommel of the Series Trust or of a parent of the
Series Trust;

(by  the party is an entity where any of the following conditions applies:

(i) the endity and the Series Trust are members of the same grougy;

{ii} one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or
fellow subsidiary of the other entity};

(itiy the endity and the Series Trust are joint ventures of the same third pany,

{(1v)  one entily 15 a joant veniure of @ third entity and the other entity 15 an associate of the third
entity;

(vl the entity is a podt-employment benefit plan for the benefit of employees of either the
Senes Trud or an entity related to the Senes Trust;

{vi) the entity 15 controlled or jomtly controlled by a person identi fied in (a);

{vii) apersonidentified in (a)i) has significant influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entityx and,

{vin) the entity, or any member of the Senes Trust of which it is a part, provides key
management personnel services to the Series Trust.
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PHILOSOPHIC 2 INVESTMENT TRUST - BOND PLUS FUND LINKED TO THE PERFORMANCE OF
WINTON 15-10 (AUD)

MOTES TOFINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 30 November 2021

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contimed)

[ d cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are defined as cash al bank, cash on hand, time deposits, and shon derm
highly liquid investments readily convertible to known amounts of cash and subject to insignificant
risk of changes in value, Cash al bank ig camed at cost.

Cash and cash equivalents denomimated in other cwrency are translated into AUD at the applicable
rate of exchangze at the reporting date.

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents conast of cash at bank.
Unithalders’ capital

Redeemable units are classified as equity instruments when:

*  The redeemable wuts entitle the holder to a pro rata share of the Senes Trust’s net assets in
the event of the Senies Trost s Lguidation,

+  The redeemable units are in the class of instromenis that 15 subordinate to all other classes of
instruments,

*«  The redeemable units in the class of instruments that is subordinate to all other classes of
nstruments have identical features,

#  The redeemable units do not include any contractual obligation to deliver cash or another
financial asset other than the holder’s rights to a pro rata share of the Series Trust's net assets.

*  The total expected cash flows attmbutable to the redeemable units over the life of the
instrument are based substantially on the profit or loss, the change in the recognised net assets
or the change in the Ffar value of the recognised and unrecogmsed net assels of the Seres
Trust over the life of the instrument,

Inaddition 1o the redeemable units having all the above features, the Senes Trust must have no other
financial instrument or contract that has:
#  Total cash flows based substantially on the profit or loss, the change in the recognized net
assets or the change in the fair value of the recogmised and wnrecognised net assets of the
Senes Trust, and,
*  The effect of substantially restricting or fixing the residual return to the instrument holders.

The Series Trust continmously assesses the classification of the redeemable participating units. If the
redeemable participating wnits cease to have all the features or meet all the conditions set out to be
classified as equity, the Series Trust will reclasafy them as financial liabilities and measure them a
fair value ai the date of reclassification, with any differences from the previous carmrying amount
recognised in equity. Ifthe redeemable units subsequently have all the features and meet the conditions
tobe classified as equaty, the Series Trost will reclassify them as equity instruments and measore them
al the camying amount of the liabilities at the date of the reclassification.

The issuance, acquisition, and cancellation of the redeemable participating units are acconnted for as
equity transactions, Upon issuance of units, the consideration received is included in equity.

Mo gain or loss is recognised in the statement of comprehensive income on the purchase, sale,
issuance, redemption, or cancellation of the Senes Tmst's own equity instnuments,
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PHILOSOPHIC 2 INVESTMENT TRUST - BOND PLUS FUND LINKED TO THE PERFORMANCE OF
WINTON 15-10 (AUD)

MOTES TOFINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 30 November 2021

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contmued)

il : the Series Trst

As provided for within the Offering Memorandium (the “Offenng  Memorandum™), upon its
establishment, the Series Tmst has provided for certain fees, including admimistration fees, audit fees,
and other operating expenses, payable to service providers for the term of the Series Trust as
determined by the Manager, This up-front provision of fees is intended to ensure that continuing
investors are not disadvantaged when redemptions occur leaving them with a dispropontionate share
of these costs which were committed at the launch of the Series Trust. These provisions have been
fully reflected in the net assed value published during the cument accounting period.

The financial statements are prepared in accordance with IFRS. Certain of these provisions represent
provigions for expenses relating 1o services that will be provided to the Series Trust over its life and
therefore are required to be recognised over the life of the Series Trust inthe period that they relate to
in accordance with IFR.Ss.

Therefore, where these provisions relate to expenses to be incurred in future perods, these have been
excluded from the statement of comprehensive income and the statement of financial position. As the
exclusion of these provisions in the statement of comprehensive income and statement of financial
position results in a difference in companson to the published net asset value for the reasons stated
abowve, a reconciliation has been provided in Mote 12 to the financial statements,

1 g3 cs o financial assets and liabilities at fair value thro 25
Met gains or losses on financial assets at FVPL are changes in the fair value of financial assets
designated upon initial recognition as at FVPL and exclude interest income.

Unrealised gains and losses comprise changes in the fair value of inancial ingnements for the period
and from reversal of the prior period's unrealised gains and losses for financial instraments which
wiere realised in the reporing perod.

Realized gains and losses on disposals of financial instruments classified as at fair value through profit
or loss are calculated vsing the weghted averaze method. They represent the & fference between an
instrument’s imitial carrying amount and disposal amount,

5. INTEREST INCOME FROM PERFORMANCE LINKED NOTES

Pursnant to Appendix 2 of the Offering Memorandim the holders, pavments to the holders of the
Performance Linked Notes will occur on the first Business Day falling on or prior to the 1 5th calendar
day of each month and the last Business Day of each month from 30 Cetober 2015 to the Note Maturity
Date in arrear at the rate of 0.8%5% per anmam on the Principal Amount of the Performance Linked
Motes plus an additional amount of (.30% per anmum of that portion of the Principal Amount of the
Performance Linked Notes which is equal to or less than AUDL0O, 000,000 and 0, 10% per annum of
that portion of the Principal Amount of the Performance Linked Notes which exceeds
AL 100,000,000,

The interest income from performance linked notes for the year totalled AUD1 504,295 (2020:
AUD1.815.686),
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PHILOSOPHIC 2 INVESTMENT TRUST - BOND PLUS FUND LINKED TO THE PERFORMANCE OF
WINTON 15-10 (AUD)

MOTES TOFINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 30 November 2021

6. FEES

Trustee and trostee's delegate fees
The Trustee and the Trustee’s Delegate are entitled to receive a trustee fee of 0,12% per annum of the

offer price multiplied by the number of units outstanding (the “Fee Amount™ ) accroed and caleulated
on each valuation day amd payable monthly in amears, subject to a minimum quarterfy fee of
AUDRI0000, The Tmstee and the Trustee's Delegate will be entitled 1o receive transaction and
processing fees al normal commercial rates. Furthermore, the Trustee will be entitled to receive an
inception fee of AUDS,000 payable as soon as possible after the initial closing date. For the custody
ofthe Trust's assets, the Trustee and the Trustee's Delegate will also be entitled to receive a custodian
fee of 0.025% per annum of the assets under custody, acerued and calculated as at each valuation day
and payable monthly in arrears.

The trusiee and trustee’s delegate fees for the year tolalled AUD ST 245 (20200 AUD195,483) of
which AUD1,971 was payable at 30 Movember 2021 (2020: AUD 15,827 ) and 15 included in accounts
payable and accrued liabilities,

Agent company's fee

Mitsubishi UFJ Morgan Stanley Securities Co,, Ltd (the * Agent Company and Distobutor™) is entitled
to receive a fee of 0.10% per anmuom of the Fee Amount acemed and caleulated as at each valuation
day and payable monthly in amears.

The agent company’s fee forthe vear totaled AUD 131037 (2020; AUD162,.902) of which AUD®.975
was payable &t 30 November 2021 (2020: AUD13,189) and is included in accounts payable and
accrued liabilities.

Diistritmtor’s fee
The Agent Company amd Distributor is also entitled to receive a distributor fee of 0.40% per annum
of the Fee Amount accred and calculated as af cach valuation day and payable monthly in arears,

The distributer’s fee for the yvear totaled AUDS24, 149 (2020 AUD6G51,608) of which AUD392,901
was payvable at 30 November 2021 (2020 AUDS2,758) and is included in accounts payable and
accrued liabilities.

Management

The Manager is entitled to receive a management fee of 0.30% per anmum of that pan of the Fee
Amount which is equal to or less than AUD 100,000,000 and 0.10% per anmum of that part of the Fee
Amount which is greater than AUD 100,000,000 accrmed and caleulated on each valuation day,
payable monthly in arrears and salject tooa mindvwn annoal fee of AUD20,000, The Manager will
also be entitled to receive out of the assets of the Series Trust an inception fee of USD60,000 payable
as 500n as possible after the initial closing date.

The management fee fior the vear totaled AUD331,037 (2020: AUD363,449) of which AUD27,510
was payable at 30 November 2021 (2020: AUD30,129) and is included in accounts payable and
accrued liabilities.
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MOTES TOFINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 30 November 2021

[ FEES (continmed)

Investment advizor fees

Mitsubishi UFJ Kokusad Asset Management Co., Lid, (the " Investment Advisor™)is entitled to receive
a fee of 0.25% per anmum of the Fee Amount accrued and calculated as at each valuation day and
payable monthly in arrears.

The investmeni advisor fee for the vear totaled AUD3ZT 583 (2020: AUD407,255) of which
AUD24 938 was payable at 30 November 2021 (2020 AUD32,973) and iz included in accounts
payable and accrued liabilities,

T REDEMPTION FEES

Red onei

Pursuant to Appendix 2 of the Offering Memorandum, the Manager may deduct from the repurchase

proceeds payable in respect of each unit repurchased a repurchase fee for the account of the Seres

Trust calculated in accondance with the following shiding scale:

#  From the commencement of the Series Trust to, and including, the first business day in November
20017, thiz fee shall be 36 of an amount caleulated by multiplyving the number of units being
repurchased by the offer price,

+  From and including the day following the first business day of Newvember 2017 1o, and including,
the first business day in November 20019, this fee shall be 2% of an amount calculated o
mudtiplying the number of units being reparchased by the offer price.

+  From and including the day following the first business day in November 2019 to, and including
the first business day in MNovember 2020, this fee shall be 1% of an amount caleulated by
multiplying the number of units being repurchased by the offer price.

*  After the first business day in November 2020, no repurchase fee will be charged.

Redemption fee expense
Pursuant to the note terms for the Performance Linked Mote, the Performance Linked Note [ssuer will

charge an early redemption fee in accordance with a sliding scale:

*  From and including the issue date {20 Oct 2015) of the Performance Linked Note to and including
the last business day in October 2007 this fee shall be 3% of the principal amount to be redeamed
a5 of the relevant secondary marked trade date,

+  From and excluding last business day in October 2017 to, and including the last business day in
Cctober 2019, this fee shall be 2% of the principal amount 1o be redeemed as of the relevant
secondary market trade date.

o From and excluding the last business day in October 2019 to, and including the last business day
in October 2020, this fee shall be 1% of the principal amount 1o be redeemed as of the relevant
secondary market trade date.

»  Thereafter, no eady redemplion fee wall be charged.

With regards to repurchase of units and note trades around the year end date, the trade date of the
Performance Linked Note being the 13th of October and the repurchase date of the units being the
12th of October, the accrual of the redemption fee expense and that of the redemption fee income are
recognised in different financial periods.
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T REDEMPTION FEES {continued)

Consequently, redemption fee receivable and redemption fee payable are recogmised for the unseitled
repurchase of units and note trades, respectively, as a the end ofthe reporting period.

The redemption fee income for the vear totaled AUDNil (2020: AUD 127 400) of which AUDNil was

receivable &t 30 November 2021 (2020: AUDNIl). The redemption fee expense for the vear totaled
AUDMIL(2020; AUD125.800),

8. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

2021 2020
AUD AUD
Financial asset= &t FVPL, at cost 110,853,260 149,601, 360
Unrealised gain 1,319,948 5,042,064
Financial a=set= &t FVPL, at fair value 112,173,208 154,643,424

The Performance Linked Note is linked to the performance of the Underlying Fund. The return from
the Performance Linked Note will be determined by reference to the valise of a notional investrent in
the Underlyving Fund. The Performance Linked Note has been issued by the Performance Linked MNote
Issuer with a maturity date of 29 September 2023,

The payment by the Zero Coupon Note [ssuer of the redemption amoumnt of the Zero Coupon Mote at
scheduled matunity date 15 secured by a swap, under which the Zero Coupon MNote [ssuer pays the 1ssug
proceeds of the Zers Coupon Note to swap connterpanty on the issue date and receives from swap
counterpanty the scheduled redemption price multiplied by the principal amount on scheduled matanty
date, The Zero Coupon Mote will be redeemed on their schedided maturity date on 29 September 2023
at 100% of their principal amount.

The breakdown of the financial assets at fair value through profit or loss is as follows:

Holdings Fair valee %% of net
Asat 30 Movember 2021 ALID assels
Zero Conpon Note 11 1. 5640, 0400 109,399 050 93.29%
Performance Linked Note 111,860 000 2.774,128 243%
Total 112,173,203 97.72%%

Holdings Fair valee % ofnet
As ab 30 November 2020 AUD assets
Zero Coupon Mote 150,960,000 149299440 9391%
Performance Linked Note 150,960,000 5,343 984 3.36%
Total 154.643.4 '=’4 97.2T%
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PHILOSOPHIC 2 INVESTMENT TRUST - BOND PLUS FUND LINKED TO THE PERFORMANCE OF
WINTON 15-10 (AUD)

MOTES TOFINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 30 November 2021

9. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

As at 30 November 2021, the cash at bank of AUDS, 014,042 (2020: AUTY7 481,576) represented an
interest bearing AUD deposit of AUD3,103,559 (2020; AUD6,403,374), a United States Dollar
(USD") deposit of USD263,835 (20200 USD300,924), a Greal Britun Pound ("GBP™) deposit of
GBP49,073 (2020: GBP49,073) and a non-interest bearing Japanese Yen (“JPY™) deposit of
IPY40,331,971 (2020; JPY44,700,805). All deposts were placed with The Hongkong and Shanghai
Banking Corporation Limited (“HSBC™), an affiliated company of the Trostee.

10, UNITHOLDERS' CAFITAL

Subscriptions

During the Initial Offer Period. Units may be subscribed for by Eligible Investors at the Offer Price
per Unit. The Initial Offer Period will commence on 31 August 2015 and will close on 7 October 2015
{the *Initial Offer Period™). Unils subscribed for during the Initial Offer Period will be issued on the
Initial Closing Date. The Manager may determine to terminate the initial offer of Units for amy reason.

Following the expiration of the Initial Offer Period, Units will not be available for subscription.

Redempiions

Urits may be submitted for repurchase at the option of Unitholders on each Repurchase Day, which
ig each Dealing Day and/or such other day or days as the Manager (in consultation with the Trustee)
may in any paficular case determine, up to and including the Final Repurchase Day,

The minimum number of Units that may be submitted for repurchase as at any Repurchase Day by
any Unithobder is 10,000 Units, with amounts in excess thereof being in intezeal multiples of 10,000
or such other amounts as the Manager may determine,

2021 2020
ALD AUD
Units in issue;
112,600,000 (20200 153,180,000 unit=s of AUD1.00
each 112,600,000 153, 180,000

Mumber of units  Mumber of units
Number of issued and fully paid units:

Af beginming of the year 153, 180,000 170,820,000

Redeemed during the year (40, 580,0007 (17,640,000

Al end of the vear 112 600,000 1 53,180,004
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MOTES TOFINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 30 November 2021

11. TAXATION

Under the current laws of the Cayman Islands, the Trust and the Series Trust will not be liable for any
profits or capital gains tax in the Cayman [slands,

The Trst has received an undertaking from the Govemor in Cabinet of the Cayman Islands in
accordance with Section 81 ofthe Trusts Law (2011 Revision) ofthe Cayman Islands that, fora period
of 50 years from the date of the creation of the Trust, any legislation enacted in the Cayman lslands
imposing tax computed on profits or income, or computed on capital assels, gains or appreciation of
any tax in the nature of estate duty or inheritance tax shall not be applicable to the Trust,

Income from cther jurisdictions. including distributions from securities issued in other countries. may
be subject to withholding or capital gain taxes imposed by such countries. Withholding taxes on the
foreign income may be withheld in accordance with the applicable country’s tax rales.

12. RECONCILIATION BETWEEN NET ASSETS ATTRIBUTABLE TO UMITHOLDERS PER THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND PUBLISHED NET ASSET VALUE

2021 2020
AUD AUL
Met assets attributable (o uritholders per financial
stalements 114,806,252 158,985,245
Adjustment to provisions (see (a) below) (1,845,736} (2,000,304
et assets used for caleulating published net asset valus
per umit as at the reporting date 112,960,516 156,934,941
Published number of umts in issue 112,600, 000 153,180,000
Published net asset value per unit in issue (2ee (b) balow) AUD1.0032 AUDI 0248
et asset value per unit in issue (see (¢) below) AUDL0195 AUDI 03T

{a) The published net asset value per umit issued is calculated in accordance with the Offering
Memorandum and includes a provision for the andit fee, legal fee and other operaling expenses
thronghout the intended life ofthe Senes Trust, instead of those amounts being expensed in the period
they relate to, as required under [FRS,
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PHILOSOPHIC 2 INVESTMENT TRUST - BOND PLUS FUND LINKED TO THE PERFORMANCE OF
WINTON 15-10 (AUD)

MOTES TOFINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 30 November 2021

12. RECONCILIATION BETWEEN NET ASSETS ATTRIBUTABLE TO UNITHOLDERS PER THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND PUBLISHED NET ASSET VALUE (continued}

(b The calculation of published net asset value per unit of AUD1.0032 (2020; AUDL.0248) is based
on the net assel value of AUDLI2.960,516 (2020: AUD156.984,941) and on the total number of
112,600,000 (20200 153,180.000) units issued at 30 November 2021.

(c) The caleulation of net asset value attabutable to unitholders per the financial Satements per wnit
of AUDLO0195 (2020: AUD1.0378) 1= based on the net asset value of AUD114.806,252 (2020:
AUDN58,985,245) and on the total number of 112,600,000 (2020; 153,180,000) units issued at 30
MWovember 2021,

13 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS, ASSETS AND LIABILITIES AND RISK MANAGEMENT
POLICIES

Other financal instruments

The Series Trust"s investing activities expose it (o vanous types of fsk which are associated with the
financial instriements in which it invests, The most impomant types of financial risk to which the Series
Trost 15 exposed are market nsk, credit nsk, and lgquidity risk, Market nsk includes foreign curmency
nsk, poce nsk and interest rate nsk.

The investment management policy of the Senes Tres is determined through the following process;
The Manager provides non-discretionary management of the Senes Tmst's assets and ponmanly will
englire inve sments are consistent with the investment objectives of the Series Trust and is responsible
for taking reasonable steps and exerciging all doe diligence to avoid the propeny of the Seres Trst
being used or invested contrary 1o the investment and borrowing Bmitations set ont in the Trost Deed
and the Offering Memorandum. The Board of the Manager has overall responsibility for the
management of the Series Trust structore to the extent of its responsibilities as detailed in the relevant
Trst Deed and Offering Memormndum.

The investment management policy is non-discretionary; the Series Trust will invest its assets on a
11 besis between the Zero Coupon Note and the Performance Linked Note (collectively the “Notes™).
Consequently, the return under the Series Trust depends on the performance of the Performance
Linked Note and the Zero Coupoen Mote. The retum under the Performance Linked Note depends on
a return linked to that of the Underlying Fund, the operating and financial performance of the
Performance Linked Note Issuer and other factors which might affect the price of the Performance
Linked Note. The return under the Zero Coupon Note depends on the fluctuation of Australian dollars
yield curve, the operating and financial performance of the Zero Coupon Note Issuer, and the other
factors which might affect the price of the Zero Coupon Note,

The nature and extent of the financial instruments culganding al the end of the reporting period and
the risk management policies employed by the Series Trust are discussed below,
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PHILOSOPHIC 2 INVESTMENT TRUST - BOND PLUS FUND LINKED TO THE PERFORMANCE OF
WINTON 15-10 (AUD)

MOTES TOFINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 30 November 2021

13 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS, ASSETS AND LIABILITIES AND RISK MANAGEMENT
POLICIES (comtinued)

{a) Market risk

Market nsk is the nsk that the value of financial assets will fluctvate as a resull of changes in market

prices whether those changes are caused by factors specific to the individual assetz or factors affecting
all assets in the market.

The Series Trust is exposed to market sk on its investments as the redemption value of the
Performance Linked Note is hinked to predetermined rules (o that of the Underlving Fund, and,
therefore, the valatility of the portfolio. This nisk 15 mitigated in pan by the Zero Coupon Note being
redeemed on their scheduled maturity date of 29 September 2023 at 100% of their principal ameount.

The portfolio of the Underdying Fund comprized the following margin allocation (unandited):

Az at 30 November 2021

Market Sector %o Margin
Agriculiure 14.0%%
Credit 1.5%
Curmencies 24.6%
Energies 19.9%
Fixed income 4.1%
Indices 4.5%
Industnals 6%
Lorg-Short equities 12.4%
Metals 18.4%
Todal 10005

Asat 30 November 2020

Marke! Sector %% Margin
Base Metals 7.5%
Bonds 13.4%
Crops 12.8%
Currencies 1.0/
Energies 11.5%
Equity Indices 5.2%
Livestock 1.5%
Precious Metals 29.7%
Rates T4%
Total 100 .0%%
25
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PHILOSOPHIC 2 INVESTMENT TRUST - BOND PLUS FUND LINKED TO THE PERFORMANCE OF
WINTON 15-10 (AUD)

MOTES TOFINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 30 November 2021

13 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS, ASSETS AND LIABILITIES AND RISK MANAGEMENT
POLICIES (comtinued)

{0} Foreign currency rivk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the valve of financial assets or liabilities will fluctuate due to
changes in foreign exchange rates, Units issued by the Series Trust are denominated in AUD and units
are only 1ssued and redeemed in that currency. The majonty of the assets of the Series Trust are
invested in the Notes which are denominated in AUD.

The Series Trust is exposed 1o foreign cumency sk to the extent that the Performance Linked MNote
has exposure to curremcy nisk as the Underdying Fund to which they are linked will reflect the
component investments which are traded in currencies other than AUD. Accordingly, the value of the
portfolio and, therefore, the value of the Performance Linked Mote may be affected favorably or
unfavorably by fuctuations in currency rstes.

Al 30 Movember 2021 and 2020, the Series Trust also has exposure to cumency risk becanse it has
assels and liabilities denominated in cumrencies other than the AUD.

The Senes Trust's cumency exposure of net assets was as follows:

Analysis of assets and liabilities by currency (totals presented in AUD based on 30 November 2021
and 2020 exchange rates):

As al 30 November 2021 IPY UsD GBP ALD Total
AUD

Assels

Financial assets at fair value

through profit or loss - 112,173,208 112,173,208

Interest receivable - - - 55,016 55016
Amount due from broker - - - 742,072 742,072
Cazh and cash equivalents 502,035 371415 92009 3,048,583 4,014,042
Total assets 02,035 37418 92,009 116,018,879 116,984,338
Liabilities
Redemption payable . - - 1,973,743 1,973,743
Accounts payable and accrued

liabilities 18,500 59,048 12,500 114,295 204,343
Total Habilities 18,500 59,048 12,500 2,088,038 2,178.086
Net currency exposure 483,535 312,367 To.5009 113,930,841 114,806,252
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PHILOSOPHIC 2 INVESTMENT TRUST - BOND PLUS FUND LINKED TO THE PERFORMANCE OF
WINTON 15-10 (AUD)

MOTES TOFINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 30 November 2021

13. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS, ASSETS AND LIABILITIES AND RISK MANAGEMENT
POLICIES {continued)

{f} Fereign currency risk

As al 30 November 2020 Py UsD GRP AUD Total
AUD
Assels
Financial assets at fair valoe
through profit or loss - . = 154643424 154,643,424
Amount due from broker - - - 2089776 2,089,776
Cash and cash equivalents 552402 407,205 88,595 6,403,374 TA81.576
Total assets 582,402 407,205 88,595 163,136,574 164,214,776
Liabilities
Redemption payable - - - 5.025.930 5,025,930
Accoumts payable and accrued
liahilities - 58,724 - 144,877 203,601
Total liabilities - 58,724 - £170.807 5,229,531
et cumency exposure S82.402 348, 481 88 5085 157,965,767 158,985 245
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PHILOSOPHIC 2 INVESTMENT TRUST - BOND PLUS FUND LINKED TO THE PERFORMANCE OF
WINTON 15-10 (AUD)

MOTES TOFINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 30 November 2021

13, FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS, ASSETS AND LIABILITIES AND RISK MANAGEMENT
POLICIES {continued)

{a) Market risk {continued)
{0 Forefon currency risk (continueed)

Sensitivity analysis

A 10% strengthening of the AUD againg the following currencies at 30 Wovember 2021 and 2020
wonld have decreased/increased net assets by the amounts shown below. This sensitivity analysis
represents management's best estimate of a reasonable posable change and assumes that all ofher
variables, in paticular interest rates, remain constant.

el Assels Met Assels

2021 2020

ALID AUD

JPY 48,354 58,240
LS 3123 34,848
GBP T7.951 5.E60

A 1076 weakening of the AUD against the above currencies al 30 November 2021 and 2020 would
have had the equal but opposite effect on the above curmencies to the amounts shown above, on the
basiz that all other variables remain constant.

Those nvestors whose financial assets are measured in cormencies other than the AUD will be exposed
to fluctuations in foreign exchange rates. Even when the net asset value of units of the Series Trust is
greater than the pancipal mitially invested in AUD, the net asset value may have decreased in terms
ofthe investors' currencies,

{f) Price risk

Price risk arises mainly from uncertainty about future prices of financial instruments held, which are
classified as “financial assets at fair value through profit or loss™, It represents the potential loss the
Series Trust might suffer through holding market positions in the face of price movements.

Inveestments in the Nofes are valued at the close of each valuation day af a price provided by the
Calculation Agent. For the purpose of the published Net Asset Value, the price provided by the
Calculation Agent is treated as conclusive by the Manager, the Trustee, and the Trustee's Delegate.

Price nsk of the Senes Trost anses from prce fluctuations of the Performance Linked Note, Thess
price fluctuations arise as a result of changes in the volarility of the managed commodities futures
which will have an effect on the value of the predetermined mules to that of the Underlving Fund.
These fluctuations will be reflected in the price of the Performance Linked Note and will affect the
Series Trusi's net assel value.
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PHILOSOPHIC 2 INVESTMENT TRUST - BOND PLUS FUND LINKED TO THE PERFORMANCE OF
WINTON 15-10 (AUD)

MOTES TOFINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 30 November 2021

13 FINANCIAL [INSTRUMENTS ASSETS AND LIABILITIES AND RISK MANAGEMENT
POLICIES (comtinued)

(a)  Market risk (continued)
{fi) Price risk (confinued)

The return on the wts depends on changes in valoes of a porifolio including the Underlyving Fund,
The trading price of the units may vary considerably before the maturity date due, among other things,
to fluctuations inthe price of the managed commodities futures that make up the Underdying Fund and
other events, The units are not equivalent to investing directly in the Underlyving Fund.

A 1% increase in the managed commodities futures fund at 30 November 2021 and 2020, with all
other vanables held constant, will increase the Series Trust’s net asset value and profils by
approsimately AUD 16 (2020 AU, 069). A 1% decrease in the managed commodihes futures fund
at 30 Movember 2021 and 2020, with all other variables held constant, will decrease the Series Trust's
net assel value and profits by approximately AUDd 16 (20200 AUDL069) This sensitivity analysis
Tepresents managemeni's best estimate of a reasonable possible change.

Some limitations of sensitivity analysis are:

*  the market price risk information is a relative estimate of risk rather than a precise and accourate
number,

*  the market price information represents a hypothetical owcome and is not intended 10 be
predictive; and,

+  future market conditions can vary significantly from those experienced in the past,

(I Imierest rave risk

Interest rate fisk is the nisk that the value of financial instiuments and future cash Aows wall luctiste
as 3 result of changes in market interest rates,

A 1% increase in the Australian dollar yvield curve at 30 Nowember 2021 and 2020, with all other
vanables held constant, will decrease the Seres Trst's financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss and consequently the net asset value and profits by approximately AUD2002,003 (2020:
AUD4, 180,384} A 196 decrease in the Australian dollar vield curve at 30 November 2021 and 2020,
with all ot her variables held constant, will increase the Series Trust s net asset value by approximately
AUD2002.003 (2020; AUD4,180,384). This sensitivity analvsis represenls management’s best
estimate of a reasonable possible change.
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PHILOSOPHIC 2 INVESTMENT TRUST - BOND PLUS FUND LINKED TO THE PERFORMANCE OF
WINTON 15-10 (AUD)

MOTES TOFINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 30 November 2021

13. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS, ASSETS AND LIABILITIES AND RISK MANAGEMENT
POLICIES (contimued)

(a)  Market risk (continued)
{fi]) Interest rafte risk {continued)

The Series Trust is exposed to interest rate risk on its cash and cash equivalents, which are placed in
interest bearing accounts. The amount of cash and cash equivalents held at 30 November 2021
amounts to 3.49% (2020: 4.71%) of the Series Trust’s net asset value. The sensitivity to changes in
interest rates on these amounts and their consequent impact of the Series Trust's net asset value is
considered not to be matenial. It is not the policy of the Series Trust to retain cash except to cover
anticipated costs, however the cash position at the reporting date includes amounts held to pay short
term repurchases. The sensiivity toa 1% (20200 120) movement in the Australian dollar and US dollar
interest rates at 30 November 2021 is highly unlikely to result in a significant increase in interest
eamed on cash held and management have assessed that any potential increase or decrease in the
Series Trust’s tofal assets and profit is not considered to be material. This sensitivity analysis
represents management’s best estimate of a reasonable possible change,

(1) Credit risk

Credit nsk anses from financial meruments, cash and cash equivalents and deposits with Anancial
institutions and banks. The Series Trust i subject to a significant concentration of credit risk as it is
exposed to financial instrumentsissued by a single institution and maintains cash and cash equivalents
with a single bank.

Credit risk relates to the extent to which failures by counterpanties to discharge their obligations could
reduce the amount of future cash flows from financial ingruoments on hand as at the reporting date,

The ability to manage the credit risk is limited as a resnlt of the Series Trust's stated investment
obj ectives which require that it invests on a 1:1 basis between a Zero Coupon Mote issued by Signum
Momentum Limited and Performance Linked Note issued by Quartix Financial Products 11 Limited
and itg cash and cash equivalents are placed with the Series Trust's Trustee and its affiliated entities
within the Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Group. In addition, the Calculation Agent
ofthe Mote is Goldman Sachs Intemational. This credit risk is managed on the basis that these financial
institutions and banks are independently rated with a minimum rating of * A" or its equivalent.

Credit nisk disclosures are segmented into two sections based on whether the underlying fnancial
instrument is subject to IFRS 9°s impairment disclosures or not.

Financial assets sulject to IFRS 95 impairiment requireime nls

The Series Trost's financial assets subject to the expected credit loss model within IFRS 9 are only
amount due from broker and cash and cash equivalemts, At 30 November 2021, the total of amonnt
due from broker and cash and cash equivalents was AUDY .81 million, on which no loss allowance
had been provaded (30 November 2020 total of AUDS 57 million on which no loss had been incurred ).
There is not considered to be any concentration of credit risk within these assets. No assets are
considered impaired and no amounts have been written off in the period.

0
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PHILOSOPHIC 2 INVESTMENT TRUST - BOND PLUS FUND LINKED TO THE PERFORMANCE OF
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MOTES TOFINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 30 November 2021

13, FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS, ASSETS AND LIABILITIES AND RISK MANAGEMENT
POLICIES (continmed)

(b} Credit risk (continued)

Fiarciel assels not sibject te IFRS 9 s fmpedrment requirements

The Series Trust 15 exposed to credit dsk on its financial instroments. These classes of financial assets
are not subject to IFR.S 9°s impaimment requirements as they are measured at FVPL. The camying value
of these asseis represents the Series Trust's maximum exposure to credit risk on financial instruments
not subject o the IFRS % impaimment requirements on the respeciive reporting dates. Hence, no
separate maximum exposure to credit risk disclosure is provided for these instruments.

On 21 February 2022, the Calewlation Agent was rated A+/A-1 by 5 & P Global Ratings®, ALP-1 by
Moody’s and A+F1 by Fitch Ratings. In addition, the Series Trust’s cash and cash equivalents are
placed with The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited, which was rated at AA-/A-
1+ by 8 & P Global Ratings’, Aa3/P-1 by Moody's and AA-F1+ by Fitch Ratings on 21 February
2022, The Performance Linked Notes Issuer and Zero Coupon Notes Issuer are not rated.

(c) Liquidity risk

Liguidity risk is the risk that the Series Trug will encounter difficulty in raising funds to meet
cormmitments associated with financial assets. Liquidity risk may result from an inability to sell a
financial asset quickly at an amount close o its fair valne.

Under the terms of the offering, the Serigs Trust's unitholders may request for their units to be
repurchased on each repurchase day of the Series Trust. The Manager will then redeem a proportion
of the Motes held by the Series Trst (o fimd the unit repurchase. The Nofes can be sold before their
maturity date at close to their fair value by the provision of one month’s notice. The redemption terms
for the underlying Notes are paid to the unitholders within twenty-three business days from the
cormesponding repurchase day, thus allowing settlement From the partial sale of the MNotes to be senled
before the redemption proceeds are due to be paid to the unitholders. The Series Trust is exposed to
liquidity risk as the Notes in which the Series Trust invests may not allow the Series Trust to redeem
its s readily.

3
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PHILOSOPHIC 2 INVESTMENT TRUST - BOND PLUS FUND LINKED TO THE PERFORMANCE OF
WINTON 15-10 (AUD)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 30 November 2021
13. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS, ASSETS AND LIABILITIES AND RISK MANAGEMENT

POLICIES (contimued)

(c)  Liquidity risk (comtinued)

A summary of the analyses is as follows:

I month 1o 3 months
Lessthan lessthan3 tolessthan  More tham 1

As at 30 November 2021 I month months 1 year Yedr Total
AUD ALD ALID ALTD ALD

Assels:
Financial assets a fair
value through profit or

loss 112,173,208 - - - 112,173,208
Interest receivable - 35,016 - - 35016
Amount due from broker T42,072 - - - T42.072
Cash and cash equivalents 4,014,042 - - - 4,014,042
Total assels 116.929.323 S5,016 - - 116,984,338
Liabilities:

Fedemption pavable 1,973,743 - - - 1.973,743
Accounts payvable amd
accrued liabilities 204,343 - - - 204,343
Total llabllitles 2,178,086 - - - 2.178,086
I micrith to 3 months
Lessthan  lessthan3 tolessthan  More than 1
As at 30 November 2020 I month months 1 vear year Total
AUD AUD ALTD AUD AUD
Assels:
Financial assets at fair

value through profit or

logs 154,643,424 - - - 154643424
Amomnt due from broker 2,089,776 - - - 2089776
Cash and cash equivalents T.481,576 - - - TA81.576
Total assels 164.214,776 - - - 164214776
Liabilities:

Redemption payable 5025930 - - - 5025930
Accounts payable and

accred liabilities 203,601 . . - 203,601

Total Habilities 5,229,531 - - - 5,229,531

iz
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PHILOSOPHIC 2 INVESTMENT TRUST - BOND PLUS FUND LINKED TO THE PERFORMANCE OF
WINTON 15-10 (AUD)

MOTES TOFINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 30 November 2021

14, CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The Manager considers the capital of the Senies Trust to comprise the net proceeds from subscriptions
for amnd redemptions of units of the Series Trust,

The Series Trust invests virtually all ofits assets in accordance with the investment objective {which
ws stated in Note 1) of the Series Trod and the investment management policy is non-discretionary.

There are no regulatory or statutory capital requirements to which the Series Trust must comply with.

15. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Manager is responsible under the Amended and Restated Master Trust Deed for the management
of the mvestment and re-investment of the assets of the Senes Trst, the exercise of the power to
borrow money in respect of the Senes Trst, declare and direct the Trstee to make distribations or
interim distributions to the initholders out of the income and’or the capital of the Series Tmst and for
the 1ssue and repurchase of umis of the Seres Trust.

The Trustee is responzible under the Amended and Restated Master Trust Deed for the administration
of the Seres Trust and for keeping the register of uritholders,

All the relsted panties are entifled to receive fees and expenses out of the assets of the Series Trust.
Dretails of these fees are set ot in Note 6 1o the fimancial gatements,

16, FAIR VALUE ESTIMATION

The level in the fair value hierarchy within which the fair value measurement is categorised in its
entirety hould be determined on the basis of the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement in its entirety, For this purpose, the agnificance of an inpul is assessed against the far
value measurement in its entirety. If a fair valne measurement uses observable inputs that require
significant adjustment based on uncbservable inputs, that measurement is a level 3 measurement.
Assessing the significance of a particular input to the fair value measurement in its entirety requires
judgment, considering factors specific to the asset or liability.

The determination of what constitutes observable’ requires significant judgment by the Manager. The
Marnager considers observable data to be market data that is readily available. regularly distributed or
updated, reliable and verifiable. not proprietary, and provided by inde pendent sources that are actively
involved in the relevant marked.

The Seres Trust's financial assets are not quoted in active markets, such as the performance linked
notes. Fair values of such assets are determined by the Calenlation Apgent nsing valnation models in
accordance with the term sheets, Such models are not based entirely on observable data as a result the
Series Trust’s financial assets are all classified within level 3. Atable showing the split of the unquated
investmentis between level 1. level 2 and level 3 has not been included as the financial assets are all
clazsified as level 3.

i3
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PHILOSOPHIC 2 INVESTMENT TRUST - BOND PLUS FUND LINKED TO THE PERFORMANCE OF
WINTON 15-10 (AUD)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 30 November 2021

14, FAIR VALUE ESTIMATION (continued)

The following table presents the changes in level 3 instruments for the vear ended 30 Movember 2021,
There were no transfers into or out of the level 3 measurement during the year.

) Nowv T AUD
Balance as at 1 December 2020 154 643424
Disposals during the vear:

Proceeds from sale (39,796 697)

Met realised gain on financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 1,048,597
Met change in unrealised loss on financial assets at far value

through profit or loss {3.722,116)
Balance at 30 November 2021 112,173,208

Total loss for the period incuded in profit or loss for

assets held at the end of the reporting period {2.673,519)
20 November 2020 AUD
Balance as at | December 2019 174,184,992
Drisposals during the year:

Proceeds from sale (19.387.935)

Met realised gain on financial assels al fair value through profit or loss 598,575
et change in unrealised loss on financial assets at fair value

throwgh profit or loss {752.208)
Balance at 30 November 2020 154,643,424

Total loss for the perfod induded in profit or loss for
assels held at the end of the reporting period (153,633)
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PHILOSOPHIC 2 INVESTMENT TRUST - BOND PLUS FUND LINKED TO THE PERFORMANCE OF
WINTON 15-10 (AUD)

MOTES TOFINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 30 November 2021

17. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING DATE
Subsequent to 30 November 2021, 9.4530,000 redeemable units in a total redempiion amount of
AUDSATO 3389 were redeemed from the Series Trust, Funher orders for the redemption of 5,080,000

and 1,960,000 redeemable units will be traded a0 19 Aprl 2022 and 6 May 2022 respectively once the
prices at these dates are available.

There were no other material evenis after the end of reponting penod up fo the date of authorisation of
these financial statements.

18. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the Trustee and Manager on 29
April 2022,

i3
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2022
107,875,238.35 9,924,522
2,479,943.75 228,155
105,395,294.60 9,696,367
106,520,000
0.9894 91
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10 EQ
2020 12 31
2020 2019
4,033,538 493,665 2,133,979 261,178
385,018 47,122 442,373 54,142
4,418,556 540,787 2,576,352 315,320
(2,000) (245)
4,416,556 540,542 2,576,352 315,320
4,416,556 540,542 2,576,352 315,320
11 750,000 91,793 750,000 91,793
3,666,556 448,750 1,826,352 223,527
4,416,556 540,542 2,576,352 315,320

2021 18
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10 EQ
2020 12 31
2020 2019
2,327,511 284,864 2,940,188 359,850
2,327,511 284,864 2,940,188 359,850
(727,718) (89,065) (974,634) (119, 285)
155,759 19,063 (256,294) (31,368)
1,755,552 214,862 1,709,260 209,196
86,735 10,615 6 1
(2,083) (255) (7,961) (974)
84,652 10,361 (7,955) (974)
1,840,204 225,223 1,701,305 208,223
1,840,204 225,223 1,701,305 208,223
1,840,204 225,223 1,701,305 208,223
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10 EQ

2020 12 31

2019 750,000 91,793 125,047 15,305 875,047 107,007
1,701,305 208,223 1,701,305 208,223
1,701,305 208,223 1,701,305 208,223

2019 12 31 750,000 91,793 1,826,352 223,527 2,576,352 315,320

2020 750,000 91,793 1,826,352 223,527 2,576,352 315,320
1,840,204 225,223 1,840,204 225,223
1,840,204 225,223 1,840,204 225,223

2020 12 31 750,000 91,793 3,666,556 448,750 4,416,556 540,542
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10 EQ
2020 12 31
2020 2019
12 (55,272) (6,765) 341,424 41,787
(55,272) (6,765) 341,424 41,787
6 1
6 1
(2,083) (255) (7.,961) (974)
(2,083) (255) (7,961) 974)
(57,355) (7,020) 333,469 40,813
442,373 54,142 108,904 13,329
385,018 47,122 442,373 54,142
385,018 47,122 442,373 54,142
385,018 47,122 442,373 54,142
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1Q EQ

2020 12 31

10 EQ
102 102

50

2020 12 31

2020

10 EQ
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2020 2019

12
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0.0175 0.2

102 11 12
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2020 2019

(155,759) 256,294

2020 2019 12 31 10 EQ

10 EQ 1Q EQ
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2020 2019
13 6
86,722
86,735 6
2020 2019
(2,083) (7,961)
(2,083) (7,961)
2020 2019
86,735 6
(2,083) (7,961)
84,652 (7,955)
2035
2020 2019
36,357 113,844
195,877 263,942
3,792,713 1,749,603
6,590 6,590
3,995,180 2,020,135
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2020 2019
2,000
12 31 2,000
2020 2020 2019 2019
232,234 377,786
3,792,713 1,749,603
385,018 442,373
4,409,965 2,569,762
(2,000)
(2,000)
2020 2019
1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000
750,000 750,000 750,000
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12
2020 2019
1,840,204 1,701,305
2,083 7,955
1,842,287 1,709,260
(1,743,800) 642,044
2,000 (2,009,880)
(155,759)
(55,272) 341,424
2020 2020 2020
12 31
442,373 (36,572) (20,783) 385,018
442,373 (36,572) (20,783) 385,018
13
102 33.1
14
10 EQ
2020 12 31
15

2021 29 2020 12 31 2,500,000
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IQ EQ Management Bermuda Limited

Annual report and financial statements

Balance sheet
As at 31 December 2020

2020 2Mg
Maote usDs usoDs
Current assels
Debtors and prepayments g 4,033,538 2,133,978
Cash at bank and in hand 385,018 442 373
4,418,556 2,576,352
Creditors: amounts falling due
within one year g {2,000} -
Met current assets 4,416,556 2,576,352
Met Assets 4,416,556 2,576,352
Capital and reserves
Called up share capital 11 750,000 750,000
Retained eamings 3,666,556 1,826,352
Equity attributable to owners of the parent 4,416 556 2,576,352

The notes on pages 10 to 18 form part of the financial statements.

The financial statements on pages 6 to 18 were approved by the Board of Directors on 18 June 2021 and
signed on its behalf by

09t

Gary Carr David Rourke

Page 7
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IQ EQ Management Bermuda Limited

Annual report and financial statements

Total profit and total comprehensive income for the year
For the year ended 31 December 2020
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2020 2018

Motes usDs LsDs

Turnover 232751 2840 188
Gross profit 2.327,51 2,840,188
Admunistrative axpenses {727, T18) (074 634)
Cther operating gains/(losses) 155,759 {256.204)
Operating profit 4 1,755,552 1,709, 260
Interest receivable and similar income Ga 86,735 L]
Interest payable and similar charges =13 {2,083 (7.961)
Met interest receivabledpayable) Bc B4, 653 {7,9535)
Profit on ordinary activities before taxation 1,840,204 1,701,305
Tax on prefit on ordinary activities 7 - -
Profit for the financial year 1,840,204 1,704,305
Other comprahensive incame for the year - -
Total comprehensive income for the year 1,840,204 1,ﬁ1,3ns

All results derive from continuing eperalions,

The notes on pages 10 to 18 form part of the financial statements.

Page &
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1Q EQ Management Bermuda Limited

Annual report and financial statements

Statement of changes in equity
For the year ended 31 December 2020

Called up Retained

share capital sarnings Total Equity

usos usog UsDs

Balance as at 1 January 2019 750,000 125,047 875,047
Proft for the year - 1,701,305 1,701,305
Total comprehensive income for the year - 1.701.305 1.701.305
Balance as at 31 December 2019 750,000 1,826,352 2,576,352
Balance as at 1 January 2020 750,000 1,826,352 2,576,352
Profit for the year - 1,840,204 1,840,204
Tatal comprehansive income for the year - 1,840,204 1,840,204
Balance as at 31 December 2020 750,000 3,666,556 4,416,556

The notes on pages 10 to 18 form part of the financial statements.

FPage &
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IQ EQ Management Bermuda Limited

Annual report and financial statements

Statement of cash flows
For the year ended 31 December 2020

Mote 2020 2018
usoDs UsDs
Met cash from operating activities 12 155,272) 341,424
Taxation paid - -
Met cash generated from operating activities (55,272} 31,424
Cash flow from investing activities
Interest received - g
Net eash used in investing activities - [
Cash flow from financing activities
interest paid (2,083) (7,961)
Met cash used in financing activities (2,083) (7. 961)
Met (decrease)increase in cash and cash equivalents {57, 355) 333,469
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 442 373 108,804
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year: 385,018 442,373
Cash and cash equivalents consists of:
Cash at bank and in hand 385,018 442,373
Total of cash and cash equivalents 385,018 442,373

The notes on pages 10 to 18 form part of the financial statements.

Page 8
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IQ EQ Management Bermuda Limited

Annual report and financial statements

Motes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2020

1

Summary of compliance

The individual financial statements of IQ EQ Management Bermuda Limited (the "Company") have
been prepared in compliance with United Kingdom Accounting Standards, including Financial Reporting
Standard 102, “The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the United Kingdom and the Republic of
Iredand”™ ("FRS 102").

Summary of significant accounting policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statem ents are set out
below. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise
stated.

(a) Basis of preparation

These financial statements are prepared on a going concem basis, under the historical cost convention,
as modified by the recegnition of certain financial assets and abilities measured at fair value.

The preparation of financial statements requires the use of certain crtical accounting estimates, it also
requires management to exercisa its judgement in the process of applying the Company accounting
policies,

(b} Consolidation

A subsidiary is an entity controfled by the Group, Control is the power to govem the financial and
operating policies of an entity so as to ocblain benefits from its adinities, Where the Group owns less
than 50% of the voling powers of an entity but controds the entity by virtue of an agreement with other
investors which give it control of the financial and operating policies of the entity it accounts for that
entity as a sub=adiary.

Any subsidiary undertakings or associates sold or acquired during the 1 January are included up to, or
from, the date of change of control or change of significant influence respectively,

Where control of a subsidiary is lost, the gain or loss is recognised in the consolidated income
atement, The cumulative amounts of any exchange differences on translation, recegnised in equity,
are not included in the gain o loss on dispesal and are transferred to retained eamings. The gain o
loss also includes amounts induded in other comprehensive income that are required to be reclassified
to profit or loss but excludes those amounts that are not required lo be reclassified.

All intra-Group transactions, balances, income and expenses are aliminated on consalidation.

Page 10
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1Q EQ Management Bermuda Limited

Annual report and financial statements

Motes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2020

2

Summary of significant accounting policies - (continued)
{e} Going Concern

The Directors have a reasonable expectation that the Company has adeguate resources to confinue in
operational existence for the foresesable future, and have adepted the going concern basis of
accounting in preparing the financial statements,

Although the company revenue reduced year on year in 2020, the cost base was managed
appropriately to maintain profitability. In addition o this the Company continued to be cash generafive,
while maintaining the Financial Position of the Company.

The Company is part of the IQ-EQ Sroup (the *Group”) and overall debt funding is managed at a Group
leviel. The Group has a record of generating cash from operations, at the same time significant
investment is made to contribute to the long term growth and development of the Group. The majonty of
the Group's revenues are reciufring in nature and there are significant non-underdying costs which
mainly relate to the acquisition, integration and project development costs, all of which are focused on
the long term growth of the Group. The finance structure has been designed o accommaodate this
growth by, rather than repayment, capitalising the interest on the convertible preferred equily cerificates
("CPECs") allowing reinvestment into the Group.

The Group has demonstrated a solid resilience of the business model in 2020 with revenue and
EBITDA up on 2018 despite the Covid-19 Pandemic. The Group has proven its ability to service
customers and win new customers with its employees warking from home.

The Directors have undertaken a review of the Company's trading forecast for the coming 12 mondhs
fram the date of signing of these financial statements, which shows that the Company is expected to
remain profitable and continue to be cash generative, Therefore, the Directors believe that the
Company will continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future,

{d) Foreign currency

{1 Functional! and presentational curmency
The Company's functional and presentational currency is United States Ddllars ($).

(i) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency of the underiying entities using
the spot exchange rate at the dates of the transactions.

At each period end, foreign cumency monetary items are translated using the closing rate. Mon-
monetary items measured at historical cost are translated using the exchange rate at the date of the
transaction and non-monetary tems measured at fair value are measured using the exchange rate
when fair value was determined.

Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of transadtions and from the
translation at pericd-end exchange rates of monetary assets and labilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognised in the income statement within ‘Foreign exchange (loss)/gain.’

Page 11
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1Q EQ Management Bermuda Limited

Annual report and financial statements

Motes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2020

2

Summary of significant accounting policies - (continued)
(e} Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable in respect of services
rendered from the provision of administration, carporate management, trustee services together with
ancillary senvices, net of any discounts and rebates allowed by the Company, and company value
added taxes, Revenue is recognised on an accruals basis, with deferral of any cash recaived in
advance. Deferred income is released to the income statement over the pericd to which it relates,
Cther revenue items relate to:

{i} Interest ncome
Interest income is recognised on an accruals basis,

o} Dividend income
Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive payment is established.

fif) Management recharge incom efexpense
Management recharges are calculated based on the services provided and costs incurred byifrom
subsidiaries and other group companies during the year.

i) Management fees

Management feas are received from the imvestment funds under management as compensation for the
management services provided by the Company. Management fees vary from 0.0175% per quarter to
0.2% per quarter of either the preduct of the initial unit price and the number of units in issue at a
Valuation Day coinciding with a Dealing Day, or of the Net Asset Value (all as defined in the Offering
Memoranda and/or Appendices of the relevant investment funds) for all funds. In some cases, these
management fees are subject to a minimum and/or an additional fixed fee also axists.

fvi Consultancy fees

Consultancy fees are received from the investment funds under management for sendces provided by
the Company relating to the set up or termination of an investment fund or sub fund. Such fees are
determined on a case-by-case basis.

() Administrative expenses

Expenses are accounted for on an accruals basis and induded within operating expenditure.

{g) Provisions and contingencies

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present legal or constructive gbligation as a result

of past evenks; it is probable that an cutflow of resources will be required to settle the cbligation; and the
amount of the obligation can be estimated reliably.

Page 12
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1Q EQ Management Bermuda Limited

Annual report and financial statements

Motes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2020

2

Summary of significant accounting policies - (continued)

(h) Impairment of non-financial assets

At each balance sheet date, non-financial assets not carried at fair value are assessed to determine
whether there is an indication that the asset may be impaired. If there is such an indication, the
recoverable amount of the asset is comparad to the carrying amouwnt of the assel,

The recoverable amount of the asset is the higher of the fair value less costs to sell and value in use.
Value in use is defined as the present value of the future pre-tax and interest cash flows obtainable as a
result of the assels confinued use. The pre-tax and interest cash flows are discounted using a pre-tax
discount rate that represents the current market risk-free rate and the risks inherent in the asset.

Ifthe recoverable amount of the asset is estimated to be lower than the camrying amount, the carmying
amount is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised in the income
statement, unless the asset has been revalued when the amounts is recognised in other
comprehensive meome bo the extent of any previously recognised revaluation. Thereafter any excess is
recognised in the income statement,

If am impairment loss is subsequently reversed, the carrying amount of the asset is increased to the
revised estimate of its recoverable amount but only to the extent that the revised carrying amount does
not exceed the carmyng amount that would have been determined (net of depreciation) had no
impairment loss been recognised in prior penods. A reversal of an impairm ent loss is recognisad in the
income statement.

(i) Financial instruments

The Company has chosen lo adopt Sections 11 and 12 of FRS 102 in respect of inancial instrum snts.

() Fnancial assets

Basic financial assels, induding amounts due from group undertakings are initially recognised at the
transaction price. Financial assets are derecognised when (a) the contractual rights to the cash flows
from the asset expire or are settied, or (b) substantially all the risks and rewards of the ownership of the
asset are transferred to another party or (c) despite having retained some significant risks and rewards
of ownership, contrel of the asset has been transferred to ancther party who has the practical ability to
unilaterally sell the asset to an unrelated third party without im posing additional restrictions.

{4} Financial habiities

Basic financial liabilities, including amounts owed to group undertakings and cther payables are initially
recagnised at transaction price, unless the arangement constitutes a financing transaction, where the
debt instrument is measured al the present value of the future payments (net of directly attributable
issue costs) discounted at the market rate of interest. |ssue costs are recognised in the income
statement over the term of the debt on an effective interest rate basis.

Debt instrum ents are subsequently camied at amaortised cost, using the effective interest rate method.

Financial labiities are deracognised when the liability is extinguished, that s when the contractual
obligation is discharged, cancelled or expires.

Page 13
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1Q EQ Management Bermuda Limited

Annual report and financial statements

Motes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2020

2

Summary of significant accounting policies - (continued)
(i) Offsetting

Financial assets and liabilties are offset and the net amounts presented on the financial statements
when there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognition amounts and there is an intention to
seftte on a net basis or (o realise the asset and settle the liability simultanecusly,

(k) Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly altributable to the issue of new
ordinary shares or options are shown in equily as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds,

(I} Distributions to equity holders

Dividends and cther distributions to the Company's shareholders are recognised as a liability in the
financial statements in the pericd in which the dividends and other distributions are approved by the
stakeholders. These amounts are recognised in the statement of changes in equiy.

(m) Related party transactions

The Company discloses transactions with related parties which are not whaolly owned within the same
group, Where appropriate. transactions of a similar nature are aggregated unless, in the opinion of the
directors, separate disclosure is necessary to understand the effect of the transactions on the Company
finamcial statements

Critical accounting judgements and estimation uncertanty

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other
factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
dreumstances,

Key accounting estimates and assumptions

The Company makes estimates and assumptions copcerning the future. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a matenal adjustment to the caryng amounts of
assets and liabikties within the next financial year are addressed below.

iy Provisions for bad debts and Accrued income

The Company recognises trade deblors and accrued income at recoverable amounts. The recoverable
amount of trade debtars and accrued income is assessed on an indnidual basis using the judgement of
management (o assess the recoverable value of these assets and quantify the level of provisioning
which takes into account an assessment of the customer's current and historic financial position, age
profile of work in progress and outstanding debt and assessment of historical recovery rates.

Page 14
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1Q EQ Management Bermuda Limited

Annual report and financial statements

Motes to the financial statements
Faor the year ended 31 December 2020

4 Operating profit

Cperating profit is stated after (crediting)/charging:
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2020 2me
UsSD$ Usos
Foreign exchange (gainsilosses (155,758) 256,254

For the years ended 31 Dacember 2020 and 2019 the audit fee of the Company was paid by IQ EQ
Group Management (Isle of Man) Limited, a related entity under common confrol.

3 Employees and Directors

Key managem ent compensation

Key management includes the directors and members of senior management. The compensation is
borne by other companies related by commeaon contrel, primarily K EQ Bermuda Limited and IQ EQ
Management (Jersey) Limited and is therefore not disclosed in these financial statements.

6 Met interast axpense

{a) Interest received and similar income

2020 2019
UsD%$ UsDS
Bank interast receivable 13 G
Interest on intercompany loan 86,722 =
Total interest receivable and similar income 86,735 8
(b} Interest payable and similar charges
2020 2018
UsDs UsDs
Other (2 083) (7.961)
Total interest expense on financial liabilities (2,083 {7061}
(c) Net interest expense
2020 2019
UsD% UsDs
Interest receivable and similar income 86,735 -]
Interest payable and similar charges (2,083) (7 961}
Net interest expense 84,652 {7.955)
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1Q EQ Management Bermuda Limited
Annual report and financial statements

Motes to the financial statements
Faor the year ended 31 December 2020

7 Incorme Tax
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Under current Bermuda laws, the Company is not required to pay any taxes in Bermuda on either
income or capital gains. The Company has recesved an underiaking from the Minister of Finance in
Bermuda exempting it from any such taxes at least until the year 2035,

8 Debtors and prepayments 2020 208
usD$ UsDS
Amaounts due within one year
Trade deblors 38,357 113,844
Accrued income 185,877 263,842
Amounts owed by related parties 3792713 1,749,603
Prepayments 6.590 6,590
3,905,180 2,020,135
The amounts owed by group undertakings are unsscured, interest free, have no fixed date of
repayment and are repayable on demand.
a Creditors 2020 2018
UsDs UsDs
Amounts due within one year
Amounts owed to related parties 2,000 -
At 31 December 2,000 i

The amounts due to group undertakings are unsecured, interest free, have no fited date of repayment

and are repayable on demand.

10 Financial instrumenis
The company has the foliewing financial instruments:
2020 2020 2019 2019
UsDs UsDs UsDs UsDs
Financial assets that are measured at amortised
cost
Trade deblors 232,234 377,788
Other receivables 3, 792713 1,749,803
Cash and cash equivalents 385,018 442,373
4,409,965 2.560.762
Page 16
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1Q EQ Management Bermuda Limited
Annual report and financial statements

Motes to the financial statements
Faor the year ended 31 December 2020

10 Financial instruments (cortinued)

2020 2020 2019 2me
UsDs USDS usos USDS

Fimancial liabiities measured at am otised cost

Amounts owed to related

partias {2,000} -
{2,000) .
11 Share capital 2020 2me
UsD$ USDS
Authorised
1,000,000 common shares of USD31 each 1,000,000 1.000.000
Issued and fully paid
750,000 common shares of USDS1 each 750,000 750,000

The Company has one dass of share capital which carmies no fight to fixed income.

12  Notes to the statement of cash flows

Reconciliation of operating profit to net cash from operating activities

2020 2019
UsD§ USDS
Profit for the financial year 1,840,204 1,701,305
Adjustments for:
Interest expense 2083 7855
Operating profit 1.842 287 1,708 260
Woarking capital movements:
{Increase)Decrease in deblors and prepayments (1,743,800) 542,044
Increase {Decrease) in payables 2,000 {2,009 880)
Foreign exchange movement (155,758) =
Cash flow from operating activities 155,273) 341,424
Analysis of change in net funds
Cash at bank and in hand
At Cash flows Exchange As at
04/01/2020 2020 movements 3122020
Cash at bank 442 373 (35572 (20, 783) 385,018
Total 442,373 (36,572) (20,783) 385,018
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1Q EQ Management Bermuda Limited
Annual report and financial statements

Motes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2020

13 Related party transactions

Other than note 5, transactions with other wholly owned subsidiaries related by commen control are not
disclosed as the Company has taken advantage of the exemption in section 33.1A of FRS 102,

14 Controlling parties

Following the restructure of the group, the Company’s immediate parent undertaking is 1Q EQ Group
Holdes (Jersey) Limited (form ey known as Moore Group Limited), a company incorporated in Jersay.

As at 31 December 2020, the ultimate holding com pany inta which the results are consolidated is
Saphilux Sarl {a Luxembourg entity).

15 Events after the end of the reporting period

On 28 March 2021 the board resclved to approve the payment of a final dividend for the year ending 31
December 2020 of USDS2,500,000,
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1
(HSBC Trustee (Cayman) Limited)
2022 130 5,911
Q2
(HSBC Institutional Trust Services (Asia) Limited)
2022 5,000 8,200
2022 31
15.64
49
€
2022 20
4
2022 405
1
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(a 1993
2020
(b 2020
4
52021 12
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Independent Auditor’ s Report

The Trustee

Philosophic 2 Investment Trust - Bond Plus Fund Linked to the Performance of

Winton 15-10 (AUD)

(A series trust of an open-ended umbrella unit trust constituted by a Master Trust Deed and
Supplemental Trust Deed under the laws of the Cayman Islands)

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Philosophic 2 Investment Trust - Bond Plus Fund
Linked to the Performance of Winton 15-10 (AUD) (the “ Trust” ) which comprise the statement of
financial position as at 30 November 2021, and the statement of comprehensive income, statement
of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position of the Trust as at 30 November 2021 and its financial performance and its
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’ s responsibilities
for the audit of the financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the Trust
in accordance with the International Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (including
International Independence Standards) (IESBA Code) and we have Tfulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the IESBA Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Other Information

Other information consists of the listing of management and administration. Management is
responsible for the other information.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not

express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
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In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have

nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and the Trustee for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements
in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards, and for such internal control as
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management 1is responsible for assessing the Trust’ s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to
ligquidate the Trust or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Trustee is responsible for overseeing the Trust’ s financial reporting process.

Auditor’ s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our report is made solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor
" s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain

professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

- Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,

or the override of internal control.
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- Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Trust’ s internal control.

- Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

- Conclude on the appropriateness of management’ s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Trust’ s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’ s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or,
if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’ s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Trust to cease to continue as a going concern.

- Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the Trustee regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of

the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal

control that we identify during our audit.
Ernst & Young Ltd.

Grand Cayman, Cayman Islands

29 April 2022
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Independent auditor®™s report to the members of 1Q EQ Management Bermuda Limited

Report on the audit of the financial statements

Opinion

In our opinion the financial statements of 1Q EQ Management Bermuda Limited (the' company®):
give a true and fair view of the state of the company®s affairs as at 31 December 2020 and of its
profit for the year then ended; and
have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting
Practice, including Financial Reporting Standard 102“ The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in
the UK and Republic of Ireland; and
have been prepared in accordance Bermudian Companies Act 1981.

We have audited the financial statements which comprise:
the statement of comprehensive income;
the balance sheet;
the statement of changes in equity;
the cash flow statement; and
the related notes 1 to 14.

The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and
United Kingdom Accounting Standards, including Financial Reporting Standard 102“ The Financial Reporting
Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and
applicable law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the auditor®"s
responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of our report.

We are independent of the company in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our
audit of the financial statements in the UK, including the Financial Reporting Council®s (the' FRC"s")
Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern
In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the directors® use of the going concern
basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is appropriate.

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to
events or conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the company®"s
ability to continue as a going concern for a period of at least twelve months from when the financial
statements are authorised for issue.

Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the directors with respect to going concern are
described in the relevant sections of this report.
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Other information

The other information comprises the information included in the Directors report, other than the
financial statements and our auditor®s report thereon. The directors are responsible for the other
information contained within the annual report. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

Our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
course of the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material
inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required to determine whether this gives rise
to a material misstatement in the financial statements themselves. If, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required
to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of directors

As explained more fully in the directors” responsibilities statement, the directors are responsible for
the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the company®s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the company or to
cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor®™s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor®s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with I1SAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these financial statements.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on
the FRC"s website at: www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our

auditor®s report.

Extent to which the audit was considered capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud
Irregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. We design
procedures in line with our responsibilities, outlined above, to detect material misstatements in
respect of irregularities, including fraud. The extent to which our procedures are capable of detecting
irregularities, including fraud is detailed below.
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We considered the nature of the company®s industry and its control environment, and reviewed the
company®s documentation of their policies and procedures relating to fraud and compliance with laws and
regulations. We also enquired of management about their own identification and assessment of the risks
of irregularities.

We obtained an understanding of the legal and regulatory framework that the company operates in, and
identified the key laws and regulations that:
had a direct effect on the determination of material amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. These included Bermudian Companies Act 1981; and
do not have a direct effect on the financial statements but compliance with which may be fundamental

to the company®s ability to operate or to avoid a material penalty.

We discussed among the audit engagement team regarding the opportunities and incentives that may exist
within the organisation for fraud and how and where fraud might occur in the financial statements.

As a result of performing the above, we identified the greatest potential for fraud in the following
areas, and our specific procedures performed to address them are described below:
The valuation of accrued income requires significant management judgement and therefore there is
potential for management bias in revenue recognition. In response, our testing undertaken, on a
sample basis, compared management®s estimate of recoverable values to amounts billed and recovered
post year-end, challenged management on recoverable values by assessing historic billing and
recovery rates based on our understanding of the specific customer circumstances.

In common with all audits under 1SAs (UK), we are also required to perform specific procedures to
respond to the risk of management override. In addressing the risk of fraud through management override
of controls, we tested the appropriateness of journal entries and other adjustments; assessed whether
the judgements made in making accounting estimates are indicative of a potential bias; and evaluated the
business rationale of any significant transactions that are unusual or outside the normal course of

business.

In addition to the above, our procedures to respond to the risks identified included the following:
reviewing financial statement disclosures by testing to supporting documentation to assess
compliance with provisions of relevant laws and regulations described as having a direct effect on
the financial statements;
performing analytical procedures to identify any unusual or unexpected relationships that may
indicate risks of material misstatement due to fraud;
enquiring of management and legal counsel concerning actual and potential litigation and claims, and
instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations; and
reading minutes of meetings of those charged with governance.
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Use of our report

This report is made solely to the company*s members, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the
Bermudian Companies Act 1981. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the company®s
directors those matters we are required to (or have expressly agreed in this letter to) state to them in
an independent auditor®s report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do
not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the company and the company®s members, as a
body, for our audit work, for our reports, or for the opinions we have formed.

Deloitte LLP

St Peter Port
21 June 2021
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